
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\2020 02 24 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

          
 
 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Neil Belenkie will call the meeting to order. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, February 24, 2020 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, February 24, 2020 be 

approved as circulated. 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, February 10, 2020 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held February 10, 2020 be 

adopted. 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
4.1 Sherry Chisholm, letter dated February 18, 2020 regarding Conflict of Interest, 

Short Term Rentals and the Sale of Road Ends 

5. REPORTS 
5.1      Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated February 24, 2020 regarding  
 Updated Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan 

a. Draft 2020 - 2024 Financial Plan - Document 
b. Public Consultation 

 
Recommendation: 
That the report from Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, dated February 24, 
2020 regarding the updated Draft 2020 - 2024 Financial Plan, which includes the 
Draft 2020 Budget, be received for information. 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VILLAGE HALL 
February 24, 2020 

6:00 PM 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  February 24, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\2020 02 24 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated February 24, 2020 regarding 
Establishment & Transfer / Repeal Bylaws for Reserve Funds 
Recommendations: 

a) That “Village of Belcarra Community Works Gas Tax Reserve Fund 
Establishment Bylaw No. 546, 2020”, receive first, second and third 
readings. 

b) That “Village of Belcarra Financial Stabilization Reserve Fund 
Establishment Bylaw No. 547, 2020”, receive first, second and third 
readings. 

c) That “Village of Belcarra General Capital Reserve Fund Establishment 
Bylaw No. 548, 2020”, receive first, second and third readings. 

d) That “Village of Belcarra Land Sale Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw 
No. 549, 2020”, receive first, second and third readings. 

e) That “Village of Belcarra Parkland Acquisition Reserve Fund 
Establishment Bylaw No. 550, 2020”, receive first, second and third 
readings. 

f) That “Village of Belcarra Transportation Infrastructure Reserve Fund 
Establishment Bylaw No. 551, 2020”, receive first, second and third 
readings. 

g) That “Village of Belcarra Vehicle & Equipment Reserve Fund 
Establishment Bylaw No. 552, 2020”, receive first, second and third 
readings. 

h) That “Village of Belcarra Water Capital Reserve Fund Establishment 
Bylaw No. 553, 2020”, receive first, second and third readings. 

i) That “Village of Belcarra Capital Reserve Fund Transfer Bylaw                
No. 554, 2020”, receive first, second and third readings. 

j) That “Village of Belcarra Operating Reserve Fund Transfer Bylaw   
No. 555, 2020”, receive first, second and third readings. 
 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 
 
7. BYLAWS 
 No items.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  February 24, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\2020 02 24 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 
Recommendation: 

 That correspondence items 8.1 – 8.3 be received. 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.1 Rob Vagramov, Mayor, City of Port Moody, letter dated February 4, 2020 regarding 
 Support for the Creation of a National Pharmacare Program for All Canadians (full 
 report available in the Village office) 
8.2 Peter McCartney, Climate Campaigner, Wilderness Committee, letter dated  
 February 6, 2020 regarding Choose Climate: Power Past Pipelines (full report 
 available in the Village office) 

8.3 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Metro Vancouver Board, letter dated February 19, 2020 regarding 
Evangelical Laymen’s church of Canada (Vancouver) Request for Road Access 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the February 24, 2020 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 
 



             
 
Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting for the Village of Belcarra held February 10, 2020 at the 
Municipal Hall, 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC. 

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator  
Paula Richardson, Administrative Services Assistant 
Also in Attendance 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, K&E Business Services (departed at 7:40 pm) 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Belenkie called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.    
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, February 10, 2020 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, February 10, 2020 be approved as 

circulated. 
CARRIED 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, January 27, 2020 

Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held January 27, 2020 be adopted. 
CARRIED 

3.2 Special Council Meeting, February 3, 2020 
Moved by:  Councillor Clark 

 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
 That the minutes from the Special Council Meeting held February 3, 2020 be adopted. 

CARRIED 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
 February 10, 2020 

 

cesposito
Typewritten Text
3.1



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  February 10, 2020 

Page 2 of 3 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\2020 02 10 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 No items. 
5. REPORTS 
5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer & Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, 

report dated February 10, 2020 regarding Financing of Land Preparation / 
Development Costs for Road Ends 

 K. Bjorgaard provided an outline of the report noting that the purpose of the report is     
 to inform Council on the issue of financing further land preparation / development costs 
 for Road Ends, as per the Council request at the Council budget meeting held   
 February 3, 2020. Related information was also provided on the potential payout of the 
 Village water debt.  
 L. Dysart advised that additional information will be received from legal counsel in this 

regard. Considerable discussion ensued. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the Chief Administrative Officer and the Financial Consultant continue to 
 pursue legal means to borrow funds for the preparation and development of Road     
 End properties under Section 175 (Liabilities Under Agreements) of the Community 
 Charter; and  
 That the scenario for developing three (3) Road End properties be pursued, 
 should legal means be achieved, with two (2) of the properties being financed 
 externally through the Municipal Finance Authority.  

CARRIED 
6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
 No items.  
7. BYLAWS 
7.1 “Village of Belcarra 5-Year Financial Plan 2019 – 2023 Bylaw No. 531, 2019, 
 Amendment Bylaw No. 545, 2020” 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That “Village of Belcarra 5-Year Financial Plan 2019 – 2023 Bylaw No. 531, 2019, 
 Amendment Bylaw No. 545, 2020” be adopted. 

CARRIED 
8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 
 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.4 be received. 

 CARRIED 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  February 10, 2020 

Page 3 of 3 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\2020 02 10 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

8.1 Bonnie Stein, 2020 Dry-After Grad Co-Chair, Heritage Woods Secondary School, 
 letter dated January 27, 2020 regarding 2020 Dry Grad Donation request. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That Council donate $100.00 to the Heritage Woods Secondary School Dry After Grad 

Celebration and $100.00 to the Port Moody Secondary School Dry After Grad Celebration. 
CARRIED 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.2 Will Pearce, Chief Administrative Officer, City of Vernon, letter dated January 24, 2020        
 to Lori Halls, Deputy Minister, Emergency Management BC regarding Proposed 
 Modernization of Emergency Management Legislation 
8.3 Tracey Takahashi, Deputy Corporate Officer, City of Port Moody, letter dated               
 January 30, 2020 to Jody Robertson, Corporate Secretary, E-Comm Board of Directors 
 regarding E-Comm Board of Directors Designate 
8.4 Jay Gilbert, City Clerk, City of Coquitlam, letter dated January 30, 2020 to Mayor and 
 Council, City of New Westminster regarding Coquitlam Council Resolution – 
 Nomination of Representatives to the E-Comm Board of Directors 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
 No items. 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD  
 Dave Warren, 4925 Robson Road, enquired with regard to the legal aspect of selling 
 waterfront property. 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the February 10, 2020 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 7:45 pm. 

CARRIED 
 
 
 

Certified Correct: 
 
 
 

 
 

    
Neil Belenkie  
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



cesposito
Typewritten Text
4.1

cesposito
Typewritten Text



              
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: February 24, 2020   
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
 
Subject: Updated Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan  
 
 
Recommendation: 
That the report from Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, dated February 24, 2020 regarding the updated 
Draft 2020 - 2024 Financial Plan, which includes the Draft 2020 Budget, be received for information. 

Purpose: 
This report introduces the Village’s updated Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Document (Document) (see 
attached) based on Council direction from the February 3, 2020, budget meeting. This Document is 
provided for public comment and feedback, prior to Council’s final budget decisions. As per Section 
166 of the Community Charter, “a Council must undertake a process of public consultation regarding the 
proposed financial plan before it is adopted.” 
 
Background: 
The next steps in the 2020 Financial Planning / Budgeting cycle, after this Public Consultation meeting, 
are as follows: 
 

 
DATE(S) EVENT/TASK 

Monday             
March 9, 2020  

 

Regular Council Meeting – Council’s 
final approval of Village’s 2020 – 2024 
Financial Plan (includes 2020 budget) 

Monday             
March 23, 2020 

 

Regular Council Meeting – first three 
readings of 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan 
bylaw and related 2020 Tax Rates 
bylaw. 

Monday                
April 6, 2020 

 

Regular Council Meeting – adoption of 
2020 – 2024 Financial Plan bylaw and 
2020 Tax Rates bylaw. 

 
 
 
 
 

cesposito
Typewritten Text
5.1



Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Updated Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan  
February 24, 2020 
 

`2 
 
 

 
The Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan now includes a 15% property tax increase in 2020, and 10% per 
year for each of the four (4) years thereafter in the 5 year plan. In addition, all water user rate increases 
have been set at 10% per annum in each year of the Plan. The rate increases and the bottom line 
projections based on these increases are as follows:  
 
 

Summary of Updated Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan 
Description 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 
Property tax increases 15% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

Water rate increases 
(exclusive of parcel tax) 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

WARD rate increases 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Transfers to Reserves & 
Surplus - General 
Operating Fund 

$318,000 $1,137,000 $1,223,000 $1,223,000 $735,000 

Transfers to Reserves & 
Surplus - Water 
Operating Fund (not 
including Municipal 
Finance Authority debt 
reserve fund) 

$63,000 $100,000 $121,000 $145,000 $171,000 

Transfers to Reserves - 
WARD $13,000 $17,000 $20,000 $24,000 $29,000 

Total Projected Reserve 
& Surplus Transfers1 $394,000 $1,254,000 $1,364,000 $1,392,000 $935,000 

Total Reserve & Surplus 
Balances (based on 
transfers noted above and 
operating and provisional 
capital spending program) 

$1,330,000 $1,847,000 $2,907,000 $4,305,000 $5,192,000 

1 Based on the current draft financial plan including net revenue from the sale of property or road-ends   
2 All figures rounded for presentation purposes.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Updated Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan  
February 24, 2020 
 

`3 
 
 

 
Impact on Average Home 
The percentage and dollar impacts of the above note property tax and user rate increases, for 2020, on an 
averaged assessed value home in Belcarra are shown in the table below. The total impacts are provided 
for a home that is connected to the water system and for a home that is not connected to the water system. 
As noted in the table the market or assessed value of an average or representative home in Belcarra has 
decreased by 9.87% from 2019 to 2020. 
 
 
 

 
 
 



Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Updated Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan  
February 24, 2020 
 

`4 
 
 

Summary 
As at the time of writing this report, the legal opinion regarding external financing for two (2) additional 
road-end lot developments has not been received. The latest information that we have on this issue will be 
provided at the February 24th meeting.   
 
The key strategic priorities for Council have been addressed in the Draft Financial Plan presented, namely 
the preparation and development of land (road ends) for sale, the construction of a water reservoir, the 
completion of the OCP review / update project and an Asset Management / Long Term Financial Plan. 
 
After reviewing and considering the public feedback on the updated Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan, 
Council needs to provide final direction to staff and to the Financial Consultant at the March 9, 2020, 
Council meeting, in order that the Financial Plan and Tax Rates Bylaws may be prepared.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

                                                                                                                                        

 

Village of Belcarra 
Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan 

(presented February 24, 2020) 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

cesposito
Typewritten Text
5.1 (a)



 

 1 
 

Table of Contents     
 

   
Summary ............................................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Introduction & Overview ........................................................................................................................................................................ 4 

General Operating Fund ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Water Operating Fund ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund ................................................................................................................................................. 7 

Capital Plan ......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Reserves & Surpluses .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Property Taxes & User Fees ............................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

General Operating Fund Details ........................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Water Operating Fund Details .............................................................................................................................................................. 16 

Water Fund Debt ................................................................................................................................................................................. 19 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Details ...................................................................................................................... 20 

5 - Year Capital Plan Details ................................................................................................................................................................. 22 

Reserve & Surplus Balances .................................................................................................................................................................. 25 

Projected Property Tax & User Fee Levels ............................................................................................................................................. 26 

Comparative Benchmarks .................................................................................................................................................................... 27 

 
 
 



 

 2 
 

 

Summary 
The Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan now includes a 15% property tax increase in 2020, and 10% per year for each of the four (4) years thereafter in the 5-year 
plan. In addition, all water user rate increases have been set at 10% per annum in each year of the plan. The rate increases in the plan and the bottom-line 
projections resulting from these increases are as follows:  

Summary of Updated Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan 
Description 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 

Property tax increases 15% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

Water rate increases (exclusive of parcel 
tax) 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

WARD rate increases 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Transfers to Reserves & Surplus - 
General Operating Fund $318,000 $1,137,000 $1,223,000 $1,323,000 $735,000 

Transfers to Reserves & Surplus - Water 
Operating Fund (not including Municipal 
Finance Authority debt reserve fund) 

$63,000 $100,000 $121,000 $145,000 $171,000 

Transfers to Reserves - WARD $13,000 $17,000 $20,000 $24,000 $29,000 

Total Projected Reserve & Surplus 
Transfers1 $394,000 $1,254,000 $1,364,000 $1,492,000 $935,000 

Total Reserve & Surplus Balances (based 
on transfers noted above and operating 
and provisional capital spending 
program) 

$1,330,000 $1,847,000 $2,912,000 $4,310,000 $5,197,000 

1 Based on the current draft financial plan including net revenue from the sale of property or road-ends   
2 All figures rounded for presentation purposes.  

 



 

 3 
 

 

 

The percentage and dollar impacts of the above note property tax and user rate increases, for 2020, on an averaged assessed value home in Belcarra are as 
follows: 

 



 

 4 
 

Introduction & Overview 
Staff and the Village’s Financial Consultant are pleased to present the 
Village’s Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan which includes the Draft 2020 
Budget. This document provides summary and detailed financial information 
for the Village three (3) operating funds (the General Operating Fund, the 
Water Operating Fund and the Waste & Recycle Depot Operating Fund) and 
for the Village’s 5-year capital spending program and its various reserve and 
surplus accounts. In addition, information is provided on historical and 
projected property tax and user rate increases as well as key benchmark 
information with other comparable jurisdictions.    

Based on this information Council will decide on any further budget changes 
and related proposed property tax and user rate increases which will be 
presented to the public for feedback.  

The financial information presented purposely differentiates between regular 
and extraordinary (includes one-time, non-reoccurring and/ or designated 
items) operating expenses and revenues so that a clearer picture of the true 
cost of funding core operations is visible.   

General Operating Fund 

The Draft 2020 General Operating Fund Budget includes a property tax 
increase of 15% with approximately $261,000 being available for transfers to 
reserves and surplus accounts ($318,000 including gas tax funds).  All 
community works gas tax revenues are transferred to the Community Works 
Gas Tax Reserve fund as they designated for specific spending purposes under 
the Federal Gas Tax Agreement. Council’s two strategic priorities in 2020, the 
OCP Review & Update ($100,000) and the Asset Management Plan/Long-
Term Financial Plan ($50,000) are both funded with Community Works Gas 
Tax funds; however, the Village will be pursuing other grant funds for these 
projects which could reduce the amount of Gas Tax funding needed.  

 



 

 5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 The Village is reliant upon approximately 
$250,000 of grant funding annually from the 
Province of BC under the Small Communities 
Investment program, which pays for a large 
portion of the Village’s operating expenses. 

The annual Municipal Road Network (MRN) costs are 
offset by funding received from Metro Vancouver. The 
goal is to build up the Village’s reserves and surplus 
balances on an ongoing basis to fund infrastructure, 
including new facilities, which will allow the Village to 
minimize future debt and related interest costs.  



 

 6 
 

Water Operating Fund 

The Draft 2020 Water Operating Fund Budget includes a water rate increase 
of 10% for those connected to the water system and for those not connected 
to the water system, with approximately $63,000 being available for transfers 
to reserves and surplus accounts.  All of the parcel tax fees cover the debt 
servicing costs on the water debt.  

 

 
 

(281,076)

218,779

(62,297)

Long-Term Debt Interest Expense 128,800

Debt Principle Payment 106,645

Parcel tax (234,471)
Transfer from Water Debt Repayment Reserve (1,946)

(972)
        

(63,269)

MFA Debt Deposit Interest (1,400)

Transfer to MFA Cash Deposit Reserve 1,400

0

(63,269)

 Transfer To Water Capital Reserve 57,769

Transfer to Vehicle & Equipment Reserve 500

58,269

(5,000)

 Draft Budget 
2020 

Summarized Draft 2020 Water Operating Fund Budget

TOTAL REGULAR OPERATING REVENUES

TOTAL REGULAR OPERATING EXPENSES

SURPLUS BEFORE DEBT, OTHER 
REVENUE/EXPENSES & TRANSFERS

TOTAL NET LONG-TERM DEBT PAYMENTS/TRANSFERS

SURPLUS AFTER DEBT PAYMENTS/TRANSFERS

LONG-TERM DEBT PAYMENTS/TRANSFERS (Funded by 
Parcel Taxes & Transfer)

MFA INTEREST INCOME & TRANSFER TO RESERVE

MFA INTEREST INCOME & TRANSFER TO RESERVE

CASH SURPLUS AVAILABLE FOR TRANSFERS TO 
RESERVES & ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

TRANSFERS TO RESERVE FUNDS

TOTAL TRANSFERS TO RESERVES

SURPLUS AFTER TRANSFER TO RESERVE (used to 
build-up Water Operating Surplus)



 

 7 
 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund 

The Draft 2020 Water Operating Fund Budget includes a provisional rate 
increase of 5% with approximately $13,000 being available for transfers to 
reserves.  Funds are not being transferred to WARD surplus as the surplus 
already exceeds optimal levels.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 8 
 

  

Capital Plan 

A detailed 5-year capital plan is provided in this document of which a 
summary follows. $525,000 is planned for land preparation and development 
(road-ends) over the next 3 years ($175,000 in 2020, $175,000 in 2021 and 
$175,000 in 2022). The $175,000 in 2020 would be funded from the General 
Capital Reserve Fund with the subsequent years’ capital costs being funded 
from the new Land Sale Reserve Fund. As there are no funds currently 
available in a Land Sale Reserve Fund for land development General Capital 
Reserve Funds need to be used in 2020 to kick-start the road-end projects. In 
the General Operating Fund, $2,100,000 of revenue is projected from the sale 
of road-ends ($700,000 in 2021, $700,000 in 2022 and $700,000 in 2023), 
with the initial revenue in 2021 being used for further land 
preparation/development costs in 2021 and 2022. 

 

 

A new water reservoir is also planned for 2021 with $100,000 budgeted in 
both 2020 and $2.9 million in 2022, for this project (total cost $3 million). 
$2.95 million of this project is 85% grant funded. The Village is in a transitional 
stage in terms of developing a longer-term (15 or more years) asset 
management plan/financial plan. This project is provided for in the Village’s 
2020 operating budget. When this project is completed a longer-term (15 plus 

years) capital plan will result with similar projections of reserve and surplus 
requirement over this same period.  

Reserves & Surpluses 

The Village’s reserve and surplus balances are projected to grow from $1.3 
million to $5.2 million over the next 5 years (see graph on following page) 
based on the Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan. Approximately $1.6 million of 
this increase is related to the net proceeds from the sale of road-end 
properties.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Village’s Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial 
Plan reflects are steady build-up of reserve 
and surplus balances over the next five years 
in order fund key infrastructure replacement 
projects internally. As the Village completes 
its asset management plan/long-term 
financial plan the amount of resources 
required for asset renewal/replacement and 
new infrastructure projects will become more 
definitive.  



 

 9 
 

 



 

 10 
 

Property Taxes & User Fees 
Property Taxes 

Property taxes are the main source of revenue for local governments. 
Municipalities have authority under the Community Charter to tax property 
owners. 

Property taxes are calculated on the basis of the market value or assessed 
value of land and/or improvements. Local governments calculate taxes using 
the variable tax rate system where tax rates are based on a dollar figure per 
$1,000 dollars of assessed property value (i.e. $1.02/$1,000).   

Tax rates differ between municipalities and each class of property. 
Municipalities set their annual tax rates based on their assessed values and 
their revenue needs which are set out in the annual financial plan.  

Parcel Taxes 

A parcel tax can be imposed under the Community on the basis of a single 
amount for each parcel, the taxable area of a parcel or the taxable frontage 
of the parcel. The Village has instituted a water parcel tax (single amount) to 
recover the annul debt servicing costs (principal & interest payments) on a 
borrowing which was undertaken for the Village’s potable water system.  

User Fees 

Local governments establish user fees as an alternative to property 
taxation for generating revenue including the funding of specific services such 
as utilities. The Village has user fees for its Water Utility service (user fees for 
those connected and not connected to the water system) and for it Waste & 
Recycle Depot service. The Village reviews its user fee levels annually as these 
fees need to keep up with the cost of providing the related services including 
future infrastructure.   

 

 

Property Assessments 

Property assessments are a key component of property taxes, as the assessed 
value of a property, in part, determines the amount of tax a property owner 
will pay. The Assessment Act establishes nine property classes based on the 
use of the property. Generally, each class determines the level of taxes an 
individual property owner will pay each year  

Each year the tax rate for each property class is calculated taking into account 
changes in assessment values and revenue needs. Generally speaking: 

• If the Village’s total assessment base increases, the tax rates will 
decrease; and 

• If the Village’s total assessment base decreases, the tax rates will 
increase. 

Individual property tax increases may be higher or lower than the reported 
overall tax increase, depending on the change in specific property assessed 
values in comparison to the average change.  

The Village’s Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan reflects 
annual increases in water user fees of 10%, and 5% in 
WARD user fees, to provide for the increased cost of 
providing these services and to built up reserves for 
important future infrastructure projects. In addition, the Plan 
provides for a 15% increase in property taxes for 2020 and 
10% per annum thereafter. Council will be making a final 
decision on the final property tax and user rate levels after 
public consultation. The rate increases in the Plan are 
summarized on the next page together with the Village’s 
assessed property values. 

http://www.cscd.gov.bc.ca/lgd/finance/property_tax.htm
http://www.cscd.gov.bc.ca/lgd/finance/property_tax.htm


 

 11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
   

 Village of Belcarra  

 Class 
Net Taxable 

Assessed Values  
 Residential $584,809,700   
 Utilities $203,400   
 Business/Other $3,700   

 
Recreational/Non-
Profit $7,408,200   

 Total Revenue $592,425,000   
 * Based on 2020 Completed Tax Roll  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The average assessed value of a home in the 
Village has decreased by 9.87% in 2020 from 
2019, from $1,491,539 to $1,344,324. This is 
based on the latest figures from BC Assessment. 
As shown above the Village assessment base is 
98.7% residential with the total base being $592 
million.   



 

 12 
 

 

General Operating Fund Details 

2020 Draft General Operating Fund Budget Highlights 2021 – 2024 Draft General Operating Fund Financial Plan Highlights 

 Provisional general property tax increase of 5% (starting point for 
budget discussions). 

 $65,000 conditional planning grant budgeted and not received in 
2019 was not re-budgeted in 2020. 

 Planning projects for wildfire assessment (2019 budget - $30,000) 
and drainage study (2019 budget - $50,000) which did not proceed 
in 2019 were not re-budgeted in 2020. 

 Increased support costs for finance & engineering. 
 Special project funding for OCP Review & Update (budget of 

$100,000) and Asset Management Plan/Long-Term Financial Plan 
(budget of $50,000) provided for in 2020 with funding coming from 
the Community Works Gas Tax Reserve. This Gas Tax funding would 
be reduced if grant funding is obtained for these two strategic 
priority projects. 

 $246,000 of funds budgeted for transfer to General Capital Reserve 
Fund & $57,000 to the Community Gas Tax Reserve Fund. 

 $15,000 of funds budgeted for to increase General Operating Fund 
Surplus. 
 

 

 Ongoing provisional annual general property increases of 10%  
 Proceeds from land sales of $700,000 budgeted in each of 2021, 

2020, and 2023 for a total of $2,100,000, with the proceed being 
transferred to the new Land Sales Reserve Fund for priority capital 
projects. These funds are from the sale of road-ends. The cost of 
developing and preparing the lots for sale is included in the capital 
budget.   
 

 In 2020 every 1% increase in General Property Taxes will generate $7,370 of additional revenue 

 

 

 

 



 

 13 
 

 



 

 14 
 

 

 



 

 15 
 

 



 

 16 
 

 

Water Operating Fund Details 

2020 Draft Water Operating Fund Budget Highlights 2021 – 2024 Draft Water Operating Fund Financial Plan Highlights 

 10% increase in water user rates for those connected to the water system 
and for those not connected to the water system (exclusive of water 
parcel tax). 

 Budgeted cost increases for the purchase of water from the Greater 
Vancouver Water District (GVWD) and from the District of North 
Vancouver for water distribution, which together total approximately 
10%.  

 $63,000 of contributions or transfers to reserves and surplus.  
 

 Ongoing 10% increases in water user rates. 
 Annual water purchase and delivery cost increases ranging from 10% to 

12% per year. 
 Contributions or transfers to the reserves and surplus of approximately 

$100,000 in 2021 with increasing annual contributions which result in a 
2024 contribution of approximately $171,000. 
 

 In 2020 every 1% increase in Water User Rates would generate $2,000 of additional revenue 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 17 
 

 



 

 18 
 

 



 

 19 
 

Water Fund Debt 
 

 

 



 

 20 
 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Details 
 

2020 Draft WARD Operating Fund Budget Highlights 2021 – 2024 Draft WARD Operating Fund Financial Plan Highlights 

 Increase WARD user rates of 5%. 
 Main cost driver is increased tipping fees of 4% from Metro Vancouver 

which is reflected in increased costs from collection/hauling contractor. 
 Contribution to reserves of $13,000 budgeted in 2020 (the WARD 

Accumulated Surplus is at an optimal level). 
 

 Annual WARD user rate increases of 5%. 
 Transfer to reserves (General Capital Reserve and Vehicle and Equipment 

Reserve) of approximately $17,000 in 2021 and increasing annually to 
reach approximately $29,000 in 2024. 

 No annual contribution to the WARD Surplus is budgeted for. 

In 2020 every 1% increase in WARD User Rates would generate $1,200 of additional revenue 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 21 
 



 

 22 
 

5 - Year Capital Plan Details 

2020 Capital Highlights 2021 – 2024 Capital Highlights 

 $504, 000 of capital projects planned for. 
 $175,000 of capital spending for land preparation/development (road-

end) with funding coming from the General Capital Reserve Fund. 
 $50,000 for planning and grant applications for the new water reservoir 

and another $50,000 for tendering. 
 $90,000 of capital spending for Non-MRN roads to address road 

deterioration.  
 

 

 Approximately 3.9 million of capital spending for 2021 – 2024, with the 
majority being $2.9 million for a new water reservoir to address fire flows 
(85% grant funding), $350,000 for land preparation/development (road-
ends).  

 

 

 



 

 23 
 

 

 

 



 

 24 
 

 



 

 25 
 

Reserve & Surplus Balances 

 



 

 26 
 

Projected Property Tax & User Fee Levels 

 



 

 27 
 

Comparative Benchmarks 
The comparisons or benchmarks presented here are for discussion purposes 
during budget deliberations. When viewing the data, it is important to 
remember that each community is unique in terms of its assessment base, its 
geography, its budgetary demands, etc. As such no two (2) communities are 
exacting alike. 

However, when looking at comparisons in a general context certain trends 
begin to emerge which are worthy of thought and discussion. The following 
communities have been chosen as comparators to Belcarra.  

• Anmore 
• Bowen Island 
• Lions Bay) 

 

This statistical data is published by the Ministry of Community, Sport and 
Cultural Development annually and is referred to as “Local Government 
Statistics”. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 28 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

Anmore Belcarra Bowen Island Lions Bay

$2,838

$1,673

$2,426

$2,923

2019 General Municipal Taxes
(based on representative house)



 

 29 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\5.2 2020 02 24 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, Reserve 
Funds Bylaws Report.docx 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: February 24, 2020   
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
 
Subject: Establishment & Transfer / Repeal Bylaws for Reserve Funds 
 
 
Information  
The ten bylaws, as outlined in the report from Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, dated 
February 24, 2020 regarding the Establishment and Transfer / Repeal Bylaws for Reserve Funds, 
will be dealt with individually.    

Purpose 
The following motions were approved at the January 13, 2020, Council meeting: 

“That the Reserve Funds and Surpluses Policy (Policy) attached to the report titled 
‘Reserve Funds and Surpluses Policy’ dated January 13, 2020, be approved as written; and  
That bylaws be brought forward for Council consideration in order to implement the 
Policy.” 
 

Bylaws are now presented on the Council agenda to implement the new Reserve Funds and 
Surpluses Policy approved by Council.  
 
Background 
Eight (8) Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaws and two (2) Transfer/Repeal Bylaws are now 
presented on the agenda for first three readings. The Establishment Bylaws will create the new 
Reserves approved by Council in the Policy and the Transfer / Repeal Bylaws will close out the 
old Reserves and transfer the balances to the new Reserves.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

cesposito
Typewritten Text
5.2



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\5.2 (a) Bylaw 546, 2020 Community Works Gas Tax 
Establishment Bylaw.docx 

  
 

 
A bylaw to establish a Reserve Fund to account for funds received and 

used pursuant to the Agreement on the Transfer of Federal Gas Tax Revenues 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 188 of the Community Charter, Council may, by bylaw, 
establish a reserve fund for a specified purpose; 

NOW THEREFORE, the Municipal Council of the Village of Belcarra, in open meeting 
assembled, enacts as follows: 
1. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Village of Belcarra Community Works Gas 

Tax Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw No. 546, 2020”. 
2. There shall be and is hereby, established a Reserve Fund, under the provisions of Section 

188 of the Community Charter, to be known as the “Community Works Gas Tax Reserve 
Fund”. 

3. Monies received pursuant to the Agreement on the Transfer of Federal Gas Tax Revenues, 
together with interest earned on the Reserve Fund balance, will be paid into the 
“Community Works Gas Tax Reserve Fund”. 

4. Monies in the “Community Works Gas Tax Reserve Fund” shall be used for projects 
allowed for under the Agreement on the Transfer of Federal Gas Tax Revenues. 

5. This bylaw comes into force upon adoption. 
 

READ A FIRST TIME on  

READ A SECOND TIME on  

READ A THIRD TIME on  

ADOPTED by the Council on  
 
 
 
                                                                                           ________       
Neil Belenkie                Lorna Dysart 
Mayor                                                 Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Community Works Gas Tax Reserve Fund Establishment 
Bylaw No. 546, 2020 
 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Community Works Gas Tax  
Reserve Fund Establishment 

Bylaw No. 546, 2020 

cesposito
Typewritten Text
5.2 (a)



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\5.2 (b) Bylaw 547, 2020 Financial Stabilization Reserve Fund 
Establishment Bylaw.docx 

 

 
A bylaw to establish a Reserve Fund for Major Emergent Operating issues, 

one-time and limited duration projects, and to offset unrealized revenues 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 188 of the Community Charter, Council may, by bylaw, 
establish a reserve fund for a specified purpose; 

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Belcarra, in open meeting assembled, enacts 
as follows: 
1. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Village of Belcarra Financial Stabilization 

Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw No. 547, 2020”. 
2. There shall be and is hereby established a Reserve Fund, under the provisions of Section 

188 of the Community Charter, to be known as the “Financial Stabilization Reserve Fund”. 
3. Monies allocated from the Village General Operating Fund, together with interest earned 

on the reserve fund balance, or funds as otherwise provided for in the Community Charter 
or Local Government Act, may from time to time be paid into the “Financial Stabilization 
Reserve Fund”. 

4. Monies in the “Financial Stabilization Reserve Fund” shall be used for: 
(a) major emergent operating issues;  
(b) one-time and limited duration projects; 
(c) offsetting unrealized revenues; and 
(d) any associated debt repayments. 

 
5. This bylaw comes into force upon adoption. 

 
READ A FIRST TIME on  

READ A SECOND TIME on 

READ A THIRD TIME on 

ADOPTED by the Council on 
 
                                                                                     ________       
Neil Belenkie                 Lorna Dysart 
Mayor                                                            Chief Administrative Officer 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Financial Stabilization Reserve Fund Establishment  
Bylaw No. 547, 2020  
 
 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Financial Stabilization Reserve  

Fund Establishment  
Bylaw No. 547, 2020  

cesposito
Typewritten Text
5.2 (b)



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\5.2 (c) Bylaw 548, 2020 General Capital Reserve Fund Establishment 
Bylaw.docx 

 

 
A bylaw to establish a Reserve Fund for 

General Capital Projects and the early retirement of General Debt 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 188 of the Community Charter, Council may, by bylaw, 
establish a reserve fund for a specified purpose; 

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Belcarra, in open meeting assembled, enacts 
as follows: 
1. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Village of Belcarra General Capital Reserve 

Fund Establishment Bylaw No. 548, 2020”. 
2. There shall be and is hereby established a reserve fund, under the provisions of Section 188 

of the Community Charter, to be known as the “General Capital Reserve Fund”. 
3. Monies allocated from the Village operating funds, together with interest earned on the 

reserve fund balance, or funds as otherwise provided for in the Community Charter or 
Local Government Act, may from time to time be paid into the “General Capital Reserve 
Fund”. 

4. Monies in the “General Capital Reserve Fund” shall be used to fund general capital 
projects that are not specifically funded from other established reserves, any associated 
debt repayments incurred as a result of borrowing for such projects, and the retirement of 
general debt. 

5. This bylaw comes into force upon adoption. 

 READ A FIRST TIME on 
  
 READ A SECOND TIME on 
  
 READ A THIRD TIME on 
  
 ADOPTED by the Council on 
 

 
                                                                                           ________       
Neil Belenkie                 Lorna Dysart 
Mayor                                                              Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra General Capital Reserve Fund Establishment  
Bylaw 548, 2020 
 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
General Capital Reserve Fund Establishment 

Bylaw 548, 2020 
 

cesposito
Typewritten Text
5.2 (c)



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\5.2 (d) Bylaw 549, 2020 Land Sale Reserve Fund Establishment 
Bylaw.docx 

  

 
A bylaw to establish a Reserve Fund for the  

Proceeds from the Sale of Land and Improvements 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Subsection 188 (2) (e) of the Community Charter, Council must, by 
bylaw, establish a reserve fund for the proceeds from the sale of land and improvements; 

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Belcarra, in open meeting assembled, enacts 
as follows: 
1. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Village of Belcarra Land Sale Reserve Fund 

Establishment Bylaw 549, 2020”. 
2. There shall be and is hereby established a reserve fund, under the provisions of Section 188 

of the Community Charter, to be known as the “Land Sale Reserve Fund”. 
3. Proceeds from the sale of land and improvements, together with interest earned on the 

reserve fund balance, will be paid into the "Land Sale Reserve Fund". 
4. Monies in the “Land Sale Reserve Fund” must be used for paying any debt remaining in 

relation to the sold property and for acquiring land, improvements and other assets of a 
capital nature. 

5. This bylaw comes into force upon adoption. 
 

 READ A FIRST TIME on 
  
 READ A SECOND TIME on 
  
 READ A THIRD TIME on 
  
 ADOPTED by the Council on 
 

 
 
                                                                                           ________       
Neil Belenkie                Lorna Dysart 
Mayor                                                              Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Land Sale Reserve Fund Establishment  
Bylaw No. 549, 2020 
 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Land Sale Reserve Fund Establishment  

Bylaw No. 549, 2020 
 

cesposito
Typewritten Text
5.2 (d)



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\5.2 (e) Bylaw 550, 2020 Parkland Acquisition Reserve Fund 
Establishment Bylaw.docx 

  
 

 
A bylaw to establish a Reserve Fund for the Purchase of Parkland 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Subsection 188 (2) (b) of the Community Charter, Council must, by 
bylaw, establish a reserve fund for funds received from the sale or disposal of parkland as well as 
funds received pursuant to Section 510 of the Local Government Act (cash received in-lieu of 
parkland funds upon subdivision); 

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Belcarra, in open meeting assembled, enacts 
as follows: 
1. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Village of Belcarra Parkland Acquisition 

Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw No. 550, 2020”. 
2. There shall be and is hereby established a reserve fund, under the provisions of Section 188 

of the Community Charter, to be known as the “Parkland Acquisition Reserve Fund”. 
3. Proceeds received from the sale or disposal of parkland as well as funds received pursuant 

to Section 510 of the Local Government Act (cash received in-lieu of parkland funds upon 
subdivision), together with interest earned on the reserve fund balance, will be paid into the 
"Parkland Acquisition Reserve Fund". 

4. Monies in the “Parkland Acquisition Reserve Fund” must be used to purchase parkland. 
5.    This bylaw comes into force upon adoption. 

  
 READ A FIRST TIME on 
  
 READ A SECOND TIME on 
  
 READ A THIRD TIME on 
  
 ADOPTED by the Council on 
 
 
 
                                                                                           ________       
Neil Belenkie                Lorna Dysart 
Mayor                                                             Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Parkland Acquisition Reserve Fund Establishment  
Bylaw No. 550, 2020  
 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Parkland Acquisition  

Reserve Fund Establishment  
Bylaw No. 550, 2020  

cesposito
Typewritten Text
5.2 (e)



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\5.2 (f) Bylaw 551, 2020 Transportation Infrastructure Reserve Fund 
Establishment Bylaw.docx 

 

A bylaw to establish a Reserve Fund for 
 Transportation Infrastructure Improvements and Renewal 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 188 of the Community Charter, Council may, by bylaw, 
establish a reserve fund for a specified purpose; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Village of Belcarra, in open meeting assembled, enacts 
as follows: 
1. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Village of Belcarra Transportation 

Infrastructure Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw 551, 2020”. 
2. There shall be and is hereby established a reserve fund, under the provisions of Section 188 

of the Community Charter, to be known as the “Transportation Infrastructure Reserve 
Fund”. 

3. Monies allocated from the Village General Operating Fund, together with interest earned 
on the reserve fund balance, or funds as otherwise provided for in the Community Charter 
or Local Government Act, may from time to time be paid into the “Transportation 
Infrastructure Reserve Fund”. 

4. Monies in the “Transportation Infrastructure Reserve Fund” shall be used to fund 
transportation infrastructure improvements and renewals, including those related to roads, 
trails and pathways, as well as any associated debt repayments incurred as a result of 
borrowing for such projects. 

5. This bylaw comes into force upon adoption. 
 
READ A FIRST TIME on 
 
READ A SECOND TIME on 
 
READ A THIRD TIME on 
 
ADOPTED by the Council on 
 

 
                                                                                           ________       
Neil Belenkie                Lorna Dysart 
Mayor                                                             Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Transportation Infrastructure Reserve Fund Establishment 
Bylaw No. 551, 2020 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Transportation Infrastructure Reserve  

Fund Establishment 
Bylaw No. 551, 2020 

cesposito
Typewritten Text
5.2 (f)



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\5.2 (g) Bylaw 552, 2020 Vehicle & Equipment Reserve Fund 
Establishment Bylaw.docx 

  

 
A bylaw to establish a Reserve Fund to Replace Municipal 

Vehicles and Equipment in the Village fleet 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 188 of the Community Charter, Council may, by bylaw, 
establish a reserve fund for a specified purpose; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Village of Belcarra, in open meeting assembled, enacts 
as follows: 
1. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Village of Belcarra Vehicle and Equipment 

Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw No. 552, 2020”. 
2. There shall be and is hereby established a reserve fund, under the provisions of Section 188 

of the Community Charter, to be known as the “Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Fund”. 
3. Monies from operating funds and proceeds from the sale of fleet vehicles and equipment, 

together with interest earned on the reserve fund balance, or funds as otherwise provided 
for in the Community Charter or Local Government Act, may from time to time be paid 
into the “Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Fund”. 

4. Monies in the “Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Fund” shall be used to replace municipal 
vehicles and equipment included in the Village fleet including any associated debt 
repayments incurred as a result of borrowing for such vehicles or equipment. 

5.    This bylaw comes into force upon adoption. 

 
 READ A FIRST TIME on 
  
 READ A SECOND TIME on 
  
 READ A THIRD TIME on 
  
 ADOPTED by the Council on 
 
 
 
                                                                                           ________       
Neil Belenkie                Lorna Dysart 
Mayor                                                  Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Vehicle & Equipment Reserve Fund Establishment 
Bylaw No. 552, 2020 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Vehicle & Equipment Reserve     

Fund Establishment 
Bylaw No. 552, 2020 

cesposito
Typewritten Text
5.2 (g)



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\5.2 (h) Bylaw 553, 2020 Water Capital Reserve Fund Establishment 
Bylaw.docx 

 
 

A bylaw to establish a Reserve Fund for Water Utility 
Capital Projects and the Early Retirement of Water Debt  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 188 of the Community Charter, Council may, by bylaw, 
establish a reserve fund for a specified purpose; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Village of Belcarra, in open meeting assembled, enacts 
as follows: 
1. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Village of Belcarra Water Capital Reserve 

Fund Establishment Bylaw No. 553, 2020”. 
2. There shall be and is hereby established a reserve fund, under the provisions of Section 188 

of the Community Charter, to be known as the “Water Capital Reserve Fund”. 
3. Monies allocated from the Village Water Operating Fund, together with interest earned on 

the reserve fund balance, or funds as otherwise provided for in the Community Charter or 
Local Government Act, may from time to time be paid into the “Water Capital Reserve 
Fund”. 

4. Monies in the “Water Capital Reserve Fund” shall be used for:  

(a) water utility capital projects, 

(b) capital equipment/systems required for water operations, 
(c) any associated debt repayments, and/or 

(d) water debt retirement. 
5. This bylaw comes into force upon adoption. 
 
READ A FIRST TIME on 
 
READ A SECOND TIME on 
 
READ A THIRD TIME on 
 
ADOPTED by the Council on 
 
 
 
                                                                                           ________       
Neil Belenkie                Lorna Dysart 
Mayor                                                             Chief Administrative Officer 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Water Capital Reserve Fund Establishment  
Bylaw No. 553, 2020 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Water Capital Reserve Fund Establishment  

Bylaw No. 553, 2020 

cesposito
Typewritten Text
5.2 (h)



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\5.2 (i) Bylaw 554, 2020 Capital Reserve Fund Transfer Bylaw.docx 

 
 

A bylaw to transfer funds set aside under  
“Village of Belcarra Capital Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 482, 2015"  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 189 of the Community Charter, Council may, by bylaw, transfer 
all or part of the amount in a reserve fund to another reserve fund; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council, under Section 137 of the Community Charter, has the power to 
amend or repeal bylaws; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council did establish “Village of Belcarra Capital Reserve Fund Bylaw     
No. 482, 2015"; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the Village of Belcarra deems it advisable to transfer the 
remaining funds set aside under “Village of Belcarra Capital Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 482, 
2015" and to subsequently repeal the said Bylaw; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Village of Belcarra, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 

1. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Village of Belcarra Capital Reserve Fund 
Transfer Bylaw No. 554, 2020”. 

 
2. The fund balance as at the December 31, 2019 fiscal year-end, as set aside under “Village 

of Belcarra Capital Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 482, 2015", is hereby transferred as follows:  
a) 40% to the General Capital Reserve Fund as established by "Village of Belcarra 

General Capital Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw No. 548, 2020”; 
b) 30% to the Transportation Infrastructure Reserve Fund as established by "Village       

of Belcarra Transportation Infrastructure Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw           
No. 551, 2020”; and 

c) 10% to the Vehicle & Equipment Reserve Fund as established by “Village of Belcarra 
Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw No. 552, 2020”; 

d) 20% to the Water Capital Reserve Fund as established by “Village of Belcarra Water 
Capital Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw No. 553, 2020”. 

 
3. “Village of Belcarra Capital Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 482, 2015" is hereby repealed. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Capital Reserve Fund Transfer Bylaw 

Bylaw No. 554, 2020 

cesposito
Typewritten Text
5.2 (i)



Village of Belcarra Capital Reserve Fund Transfer Bylaw No. 554, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\5.2 (i) Bylaw 554, 2020 Capital Reserve Fund Transfer 
Bylaw.docx 

2 
 
 
 
READ A FIRST TIME on 
 
READ A SECOND TIME on 
 
READ A THIRD TIME on 
 
ADOPTED by the Council on 
 
 
 
                                                                                           ________       
Neil Belenkie                Lorna Dysart 
Mayor                                                             Chief Administrative Officer 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Capital Reserve Fund Transfer Bylaw 
Bylaw No. 554, 2020 
 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 02 24\5.2 (j) Bylaw 555, 2020 Operating Reserve Fund Transfer.docx 

 

A bylaw to transfer funds set aside under  
“Village of Belcarra Operating Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 483, 2015"  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 189 of the Community Charter, Council may, by bylaw, 
transfer all or part of the amount in a reserve fund to another reserve fund; 
AND WHEREAS the Council, under Section 137 of the Community Charter has the power to 
amend or repeal bylaws; 
AND WHEREAS the Council did establish “Village of Belcarra Operating Reserve Fund Bylaw 
No. 483, 2015"; 
AND WHEREAS the Council deems it advisable to transfer the remaining funds set aside under 
“Village of Belcarra Operating Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 483, 2015" and to subsequently repeal 
the said Bylaw; 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Village of Belcarra, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 

1. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Village of Belcarra Operating Reserve Fund 
Transfer Bylaw No. 555, 2020”. 

 
2. The fund balance as at the December 31, 2019 fiscal year-end, as set aside under “Village 

of Belcarra Operating Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 483, 2015", is hereby transferred to the 
Financial Stabilization Reserve Fund as established by "Village of Belcarra Financial 
Stabilization Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw No. 547, 2020”. 

 
3. “Village of Belcarra Operating Reserve Fund Bylaw No. 483, 2015" is hereby repealed. 

 
READ A FIRST TIME on 
 
READ A SECOND TIME on 
 
READ A THIRD TIME on 
 
ADOPTED by the Council on 
 
 
 
                                                                                           ________       
Neil Belenkie                 Lorna Dysart 
Mayor                                                              Chief Administrative Officer 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Operating Reserve Fund Transfer 
Bylaw No. 555, 2020 
 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Operating Reserve Fund Transfer 

Bylaw No. 555, 2020 

cesposito
Typewritten Text
5.2 (j)



cesposito
Typewritten Text
8.1





cesposito
Typewritten Text
8.2





cesposito
Typewritten Text
8.3


	3.1 2020 02 10 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	CARRIED
	6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES
	No items.
	Certified Correct:

	5.1 2020 02 24 Financial Plan Document Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: February 24, 2020
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: Updated Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan
	Recommendation:
	Purpose:
	Background:
	The next steps in the 2020 Financial Planning / Budgeting cycle, after this Public Consultation meeting, are as follows:
	The Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan now includes a 15% property tax increase in 2020, and 10% per year for each of the four (4) years thereafter in the 5 year plan. In addition, all water user rate increases have been set at 10% per annum in each yea...
	1 Based on the current draft financial plan including net revenue from the sale of property or road-ends
	2 All figures rounded for presentation purposes.
	Impact on Average Home
	The percentage and dollar impacts of the above note property tax and user rate increases, for 2020, on an averaged assessed value home in Belcarra are shown in the table below. The total impacts are provided for a home that is connected to the water s...
	Summary
	As at the time of writing this report, the legal opinion regarding external financing for two (2) additional road-end lot developments has not been received. The latest information that we have on this issue will be provided at the February 24th meeti...
	The key strategic priorities for Council have been addressed in the Draft Financial Plan presented, namely the preparation and development of land (road ends) for sale, the construction of a water reservoir, the completion of the OCP review / update p...
	After reviewing and considering the public feedback on the updated Draft 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan, Council needs to provide final direction to staff and to the Financial Consultant at the March 9, 2020, Council meeting, in order that the Financial P...

	5.1 (a) Budget document updated for Feb 24 agenda.pdf
	Summary
	Introduction & Overview
	General Operating Fund
	Water Operating Fund
	Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund
	Capital Plan
	Reserves & Surpluses
	Property Taxes & User Fees

	General Operating Fund Details
	Water Fund Debt
	Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Details
	Reserve & Surplus Balances
	Projected Property Tax & User Fee Levels
	Comparative Benchmarks

	5.2 2020 02 24 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, Reserve Funds Bylaws Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: February 24, 2020
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: Establishment & Transfer / Repeal Bylaws for Reserve Funds
	Information
	Purpose
	Background

	5.2 (b) Bylaw 547, 2020 Financial Stabilization Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw.pdf
	Mayor                                                            Chief Administrative Officer

	5.2 (c) Bylaw 548, 2020 General Capital Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw.pdf
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra General Capital Reserve Fund Establishment
	Bylaw 548, 2020

	5.2 (d) Bylaw 549, 2020 Land Sale Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw.pdf
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Land Sale Reserve Fund Establishment
	Bylaw No. 549, 2020

	5.2 (e) Bylaw 550, 2020 Parkland Acquisition Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw.pdf
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Parkland Acquisition Reserve Fund Establishment
	Bylaw No. 550, 2020

	5.2 (f) Bylaw 551, 2020 Transportation Infrastructure Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw.pdf
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Transportation Infrastructure Reserve Fund Establishment
	Bylaw No. 551, 2020

	5.2 (g) Bylaw 552, 2020 Vehicle & Equipment Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw.pdf
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Vehicle & Equipment Reserve Fund Establishment
	Bylaw No. 552, 2020

	5.2 (h) Bylaw 553, 2020 Water Capital Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw.pdf
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Water Capital Reserve Fund Establishment
	Bylaw No. 553, 2020

	5.2 (i) Bylaw 554, 2020 Capital Reserve Fund Transfer Bylaw.pdf
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Capital Reserve Fund Transfer Bylaw
	Bylaw No. 554, 2020

	5.2 (i) Bylaw 554, 2020 Capital Reserve Fund Transfer Bylaw.pdf
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Capital Reserve Fund Transfer Bylaw
	Bylaw No. 554, 2020

	5.2 (j) Bylaw 555, 2020 Operating Reserve Fund Transfer.pdf
	READ A FIRST TIME on
	READ A SECOND TIME on
	READ A THIRD TIME on
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Operating Reserve Fund Transfer
	Bylaw No. 555, 2020




